

Y Gwir Anrhydeddus Alun Cairns AS
Ysgrifennydd Gwladol Cymru
1 Caspian Point
Ffordd Caspian
Bae Caerdydd
CF10 4DQ

5 Gorffennaf 2016

Annwyl Alun

Bil Cymru – ail ddiwrnod y Cyfnod Pwyllgor – gwelliannau arfaethedig

Yn dilyn fy llythyr dyddiedig 30 Mehefin, rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch i roi gwybod ichi am y gwelliannau ychwanegol yr wyf wedi'u cyhoeddi heddiw sy'n ymwneud â chymalau ym Mil Cymru a gaiff eu trafod ddydd Llun 11 Gorffennaf.

Fel y nodais yn fy llythyr dyddiedig 21 Mehefin, rwyf yn arbennig o bryderus y bydd y model arfaethedig ar gyfer cymhwysedd yn y Bil yn gwahardd y Cynulliad yn llwyr rhag deddfu mewn unrhyw ffordd sy'n 'ymwneud â' mater a gadwyd yn ôl. Mae fy ngwelliannau yn awgrymu dull amgen, ac yn mynd i'r afael â materion eraill yr wyf wedi'u codi ynghylch y profion ar gyfer cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol.

Rwyf yn rhoi ystyriaeth bellach i gysyniadau Llywodraeth y DU gan fy mod o'r farn bod rhagor o waith y gallem ei wneud i sicrhau mwy o eglurder a chysondeb mewn perthynas â'r setliad presennol o ran y darpariaethau yn y Bil y bydd dal angen cysyniad Llywodraeth y DU yn eu cylch.

Fel y gwneuthum yr wythnos ddiwethaf, rwyf wedi ysgrifennu at holl Aelodau Seneddol Cymru heddiw. Amgaeaf gopi o'r llythyr hwnnw, ynghyd â manylion am y gwelliannau hyn.

Rwyf yn gobeithio y byddwn yn gallu cyfarfod cyn bo hir i drafod y materion hyn, ac y byddwn yn parhau i gydweithio mewn modd adeiladol.

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English



Tŷ'r Cyffredin
LLUNDAIN
SW1A 0AA

5 Gorffennaf 2016

At holl Aelodau Seneddol Cymru

Annwyl Gyfaill

Bil Cymru – gwelliannau arfaethedig ar gyfer 11 Gorffennaf

Yn dilyn y llythyr a anfonais yr wythnos ddiwethaf, rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch i roi gwybod ichi am y newidiadau ychwanegol yr wyf wedi'u cyhoeddi heddiw sy'n ymwneud â chymalau ym Mil Cymru a gaiff eu trafod ddydd Llun 11 Gorffennaf. Yn unol â'r drefn flaenorol, rwyf hefyd wedi ysgrifennu at yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol, ac rwy'n gobeithio y bydd y cynigion hyn yn cyfrannu at y ddadl bwysig ynghylch setliad cyfansoddiadol Cymru ar gyfer y dyfodol.

Mae'r gwelliannau yr wyf wedi'u cyhoeddi heddiw yn canolbwyntio ar sicrhau bod cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol y Cynulliad yn glir ac yn ymarferol, ac nad yw'n lleihau'r pwerau a ddatganolwyd i'r Cynulliad o dan y setliad presennol.

Fy mhryder pennaf o ran y model arfaethedig ar gyfer cymhwysedd yw y bydd y Bil yn gwahardd y Cynulliad yn llwyr rhag deddfu mewn unrhyw ffordd sy'n 'ymwneud â' mater a gadwyd yn ôl. Bydd hyn yn arwain at golli rhywfaint o gymhwysedd o'i gymharu â'r setliad presennol, a hynny yn y ddwy ffordd a ganlyn:

Yn gyntaf, mae'r setliad presennol yn caniatáu i'r Cynulliad ddeddfu mewn ffordd "ategol" ar eithriadau o ran cymhwysedd (sy'n cyfateb i gymalau cadw o dan y setliad arfaethedig). Nid yw'r Bil yn rhoi rhydd hant i'r Cynulliad ddeddfu yn y modd "ategol" hyn.

Yn ail, yn achos *Bil Sector Amaethyddol (Cymru)* mynegodd y Goruchaf Lys yn glir fod gan y Cynulliad hawl i ddeddfu ar hyn o bryd ar faterion ag iddynt "ddiben deuol" - lle mae'r ddeddfwriaeth yn ymwneud â materion sydd wedi'u cynnwys yn

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English



benodol o fewn cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol y Cynulliad, a materion nad ydynt wedi'u crybwyll o gwbl yn Neddf Llywodraeth Cymru – yr hyn a elwir yn bynciau tawel. Unwaith eto, byddai'r Bil yn dileu rhwydd hynt y Cynulliad yn y cyd-destun hwn.

Nod y prif newidiadau yr wyf yn eu cynnig yw:

- Adfer cymhwysedd y Cynulliad yn rhannol drwy ei alluogi i ddeddfu mewn ffordd ategol mewn perthynas â materion a gadwyd yn ôl;
- Dileu'r prawf angenrheidrwydd mewn perthynas â'r gyfraith ar faterion a gadwyd yn ôl, ac mewn achosion lle mae deddfwriaeth y Cynulliad yn ymwneud â Lloegr;
- Diwygio cyfyngiadau'r gyfraith droseddol er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn unol â chyfyngiadau'r gyfraith breifat, fel y gall y Cynulliad addasu'r gyfraith droseddol at ddibenion datganoledig.

Mae'r dogfennau sydd wedi'u hatodi yn cynnwys disgrifiad manwl o'r newidiadau yr wyf yn eu hawgrymu, yn ogystal â'r gwelliannau drafft eu hunain. Mae testun y gwelliannau drafft hefyd wedi'i gynnwys fel atodiad.

Byddaf yn parhau i drafod gyda'r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol materion eraill y bydd angen ystyriaeth bellach arnynt yn nes ymlaen yn nhaith y Bil, gan gynnwys y darpariaethau ar gydsyniad Llywodraeth y DU.

Byddwn yn fwy na pharod i drafod unrhyw agwedd gyda chi, ac mae croeso i chi gysylltu â'm swyddfa.

Yn gywir



Elin Jones AC
Llywydd

Amg



Anfonwyd copïau o'r llythyr hwn at Brif Weinidog Cymru, arweinwyr grwpiau pleidiau'r Cynulliad a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol.

Yn gywir



Elin Jones AC
Llywydd

Amg



Briefing on Presiding Officer's proposed amendments for Day 2 consideration of the Wales Bill

Summary table of amendments	2
Clause 3 – Legislative competence	3
Clause 51 – Consequential provision.....	6
Schedule 1, paragraph 1, reservation 6 – Single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales.....	9
Schedule 2, paragraphs 1 and 2 – The law on reserved matters	10
Schedule 2, paragraph 4 – Criminal law	12
List of proposed amendments	14

Summary table of amendments

Clause	Purpose and effect of proposed amendments
Clause 3	The amendments restore the Assembly’s competence by enabling it to legislate in an ancillary way in relation to reserved matters.
Clause 51	The amendments introduce separate provisions for the amendment or repeal of Acts of Parliament, Assembly primary legislation and Assembly secondary legislation by the Secretary of State.
Schedule 1, paragraph 1	The amendment clarifies the reservation so that “the Crown Prosecution Service” is reserved, rather than “prosecutors” more generally, as this could prohibit Assembly legislation enabling devolved authorities to prosecute, such as local authorities.
Schedule 2, paragraphs 1 and 2	The amendment removes the necessity test in relation to the law on reserved matters.
Schedule 2, paragraph 4	The amendment removes the criminal law restriction and replaces it with a restriction that the Assembly cannot modify criminal law unless it is for a purpose other than a reserved purpose. This would bring it into line with the private law restriction.

Clause 3 – Legislative competence

Purpose and effect of proposed amendments

1. These amendments would restore the Assembly’s competence closer to its current level. Currently, the Assembly is able to affect, in a minor way, matters that are listed as exceptions from competence in Schedule 7 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (GOWA) (see section 108(5) GOWA).
2. Most of these exceptions have been converted into reservations in the proposed new settlement (e.g. “consumer protection”). However, under the new settlement, the Assembly will have no competence to legislate in a way which touches on reserved matters at all.
3. The Assembly can also currently legislate in relation to “silent subjects” (topics that are not listed as either subjects of competence, nor exceptions from competence, in Schedule 7 to GOWA). The Assembly can do so only where it is also legislating on a subject that is specifically devolved by Schedule 7. Many of these silent subjects e.g. “employment rights and duties”, have been converted into reservations in the Bill. The amendment would restore the Assembly’s competence to affect these topics in a purely ancillary way. However, that ancillary competence would still be narrower than the Assembly’s present competence to legislate on “silent subjects” when that legislation also relates to expressly-devolved subjects.
4. Finally, the amendments would remove the need for the Assembly to show that any provision it passes that touches on England, is not only “ancillary”, but also “has no greater effect ... than is necessary” to give effect to its purpose. The test of necessity should be removed on grounds of clarity and workability, as it is capable of a number of different interpretations. One possible interpretation is extremely restrictive and would constitute a reduction in the Assembly’s current competence.

Text of the clause as amended

3 Legislative competence

(1) For section 108 of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (legislative competence) substitute—
“108A Legislative competence

- (1) An Act of the Assembly is not law so far as any provision of the Act is outside the Assembly's legislative competence.
- (2) A provision is outside that competence so far as any of the following paragraphs apply—
- (a) it extends otherwise than only to England and Wales,
 - (b) it applies otherwise than in relation to Wales or confers, imposes, modifies or removes (or gives power to confer, impose, modify or remove) functions exercisable otherwise than in relation to Wales,
 - (c) it relates to reserved matters (see Schedule 7A),
 - (d) it breaches any of the restrictions in Part 1 of Schedule 7B, having regard to any exception in Part 2 of that Schedule from those restrictions, or
 - (e) it is incompatible with the Convention rights or with EU law.
- (3) But subsections (2)(b) and (2)(c) do ~~does not~~ apply to a provision which ~~(a)~~ is ancillary to a provision which is within the Assembly's legislative competence (or would be if it were included in an Act of the Assembly). ~~and~~
- ~~(b) has no greater effect otherwise than in relation to Wales, or in relation to functions exercisable otherwise than in relation to Wales, than is necessary to give effect to the purpose of that provision.~~
- ~~(4) For this purpose, a provision of an Act of Parliament is "devolved" if it would be within the Assembly's legislative competence if it were contained in an Act of the Assembly (ignoring paragraphs 8 to 11 of Schedule 7B).~~
- ~~(5) In determining what is necessary to give effect to the purpose of that provision, any power to make laws other than that of the Assembly is to be disregarded.~~
- (6) The question whether a provision of an Act of the Assembly relates to a reserved matter is to be determined by reference to the purpose of the provision, having regard (among other things) to its effect in all the circumstances.
- (7) For the purposes of this Act a provision is "ancillary" to another provision if it—
- (a) provides for the enforcement of the other provision or is otherwise appropriate for making that provision effective, or
 - (b) is otherwise incidental to, or consequential on, that provision.
- (2) For Schedule 7 to the 2006 Act (Acts of the Assembly) substitute—
- (a) the Schedule 7A set out in Schedule 1 to this Act, and
 - (b) the Schedule 7B set out in Schedule 2 to this Act.

Text of amendments and Explanatory notes

Amendment 1

Clause 3, page 2, line 33 leave out "subsection (2)(b) does" and insert "subsections (2)(b) and (2)(c) do"

Explanatory notes

The amendment restores the Assembly's competence by enabling it to legislate in an ancillary way in relation to reserved matters.

Amendment 2

Clause 3, page 2, line 34 leave out from "provision" to end of line 6 on page 3 and insert "which is within the Assembly's legislative competence (or would be if it were included in an Act of the Assembly)."

Explanatory notes

The amendment restores the Assembly's competence by enabling it to legislate in an ancillary way in relation to reserved matters.

Clause 51 – Consequential provision

Purpose and effect of proposed amendments

5. The amendments introduce separate provisions for the amendment, repeal or revocation of Acts of Parliament, Assembly primary legislation and Assembly subordinate legislation.

6. The amendments provide that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or repeal an Assembly Act or Assembly Measure, then the regulations must be approved by the affirmative procedure in the Assembly as well as each House of Parliament.

7. The amendments make similar provision in respect of the Secretary of State using the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or revoke subordinate legislation made by the Welsh Ministers or the Assembly (as it was between 1999 and 2006). These regulations would be subject to the negative procedure, rather than the affirmative procedure.

8. The amendments provide that the Assembly would have no role where the power in clause 51 was used to make regulations that amend or repeal an Act of Parliament or amend or revoke non-Assembly subordinate legislation.

Text of the clause as amended

51 Consequential provision

(1) Schedule 5 contains minor and consequential amendments.

(2) The Secretary of State may by regulations make such consequential provision in connection with any provision of this Act as the Secretary of State considers appropriate.

(3) Regulations under subsection (2) may amend, repeal, revoke or otherwise modify—

(a) an enactment contained in primary legislation, or

(b) an instrument made under an enactment contained in primary legislation.

(4) Regulations under subsection (2) may make—

(a) different provision for different purposes or cases;

(b) provision generally or for specific cases;

- (c) provision subject to exceptions;
- (d) provision for the delegation of functions;
- (e) transitional or saving provision.

(5) The power to make regulations under subsection (2) is exercisable by statutory instrument.

(6) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or repealing any provision of an Act of Parliament ~~primary legislation~~ may not be made unless a draft of the instrument has been laid before and approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament.

(6A) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or repealing any provision of a Measure or Act of the National Assembly for Wales may not be made unless a draft of the instrument has been laid before and approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and the Assembly.

(7) Subject to subsection (7A), any other statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2), if made without a draft having been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament, is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of either House of Parliament.

(7A) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or revoking subordinate legislation made by—

(a) the Welsh Ministers, or

(b) the National Assembly for Wales as constituted by the Government of Wales Act 1998,

if made without a draft having been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and the Assembly, is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of either House of Parliament or the Assembly.

~~(8) In this section “primary legislation” means—~~

~~(a) an Act of Parliament;~~

~~(b) a Measure or Act of the National Assembly for Wales.~~

Amendment 1

Clause 51, page 39, line 4, leave out “primary legislation” and insert “an Act of Parliament”.

Explanatory notes

The amendment introduces separate provisions for the use of the power in clause 51 in relation to an Act of Parliament.

Amendment 2

Clause 51, page 39, line 6, at end insert –

“(6A) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or repealing any provision of a Measure or Act of the National Assembly for Wales may not be made unless a draft of the instrument has been laid before and approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and the Assembly.”

Explanatory notes

The amendment provides that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or repeal an Assembly Act or Assembly Measure, then the regulations must be approved by the Assembly and each House of Parliament.

Amendment 3

Clause 51, page 39, line 7, at beginning insert “Subject to subsection (7A),”

Explanatory notes

The amendment is linked to the provision that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or revoke subordinate legislation made by the Welsh Ministers or the Assembly, the regulations would be subject to annulment by the Assembly and each House of Parliament.

Amendment 4

Clause 51, page 39, line 10, at end insert –

“(7A) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or revoking subordinate legislation made by—

(a) the Welsh Ministers, or

(b) the National Assembly for Wales as constituted by the Government of Wales Act 1998,

if made without a draft having been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and the Assembly, is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of either House of Parliament or the Assembly.”

Explanatory notes

The amendment provides that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or revoke subordinate legislation made by the Welsh Ministers or the Assembly, the regulations would be subject to annulment by the Assembly and each House of Parliament.

Amendment 5

Clause 51, page 39, line 11, leave out subsection (8).

Explanatory notes

The amendment removes the definition of “primary legislation”.

Schedule 1, paragraph 1, reservation 6 – Single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales

Purpose and effect of proposed amendment

9. Reservation 6 provides that “prosecutors” are generally reserved. The amendment provides that it would just be “the Crown Prosecution Service” that is reserved. This would allow the Assembly to legislate in relation to other prosecutors, such as local authorities, Natural Resources Wales and the RSPCA (that are often specified as prosecutors). The amendment therefore clarifies an important area of the Assembly’s competence.

Text of the paragraph as amended

Single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales

6 (1) The following are reserved matters—

- (a) courts (including, in particular, their creation and jurisdiction);
- (b) judges (including, in particular, their appointment and remuneration);
- (c) civil or criminal proceedings (including, in particular, bail, costs, custody pending trial, disclosure, enforcement of orders of courts, evidence, sentencing, limitation of actions, procedure, the Crown Prosecution Service ~~prosecutors~~ and remedies);
- (d) pardons for criminal offences;
- (e) private international law;
- (f) judicial review of administrative action.

Text of amendment and Explanatory notes

Schedule 1, page 42, line 20, leave out “prosecutors” and insert “the Crown Prosecution Service”

Explanatory notes

The amendment clarifies the reservation so that “the Crown Prosecution Service” is reserved, rather than “prosecutors” more generally, as this could prohibit Assembly legislation enabling devolved authorities to prosecute, such as local authorities.

Schedule 2, paragraphs 1 and 2 – The law on reserved matters

Purpose and effect of proposed amendment

10. The amendment would remove the need for the Assembly to show that any provision it passes that affects “the law on reserved matters” is not only “ancillary”, but also “has no greater effect ... than is necessary” to give effect to its purpose. The test of necessity is objectionable on grounds of clarity and workability, as it is capable of a number of different interpretations. One possible interpretation is extremely restrictive and would represent a reduction in the Assembly’s current competence.

11. The difference between a “reserved matter” and the “law on reserved matters” is explained in paragraphs 409-411 and 413-414 of the Explanatory Notes to the Bill. The Notes give the example of an Assembly Bill which related entirely to planning, which is not a reserved matter, but which modified a provision of a UK Parliamentary Act concerning telecommunications. That modification might be within the Assembly’s competence, as its purpose might relate entirely to planning and so it would meet the test set out in new section 108A(6) of the Government of Wales Act 2006, inserted by clause 3 of the Bill. But by modifying a provision of a UK Act of Parliament, which concerned a reserved matter, it would modify “the law on reserved matters”. The Assembly should be able to do so in a purely ancillary way without also having to show that the modification made has “no greater effect ... than is necessary”.

12. An equivalent to the Bill provision is contained in the Scotland Act 1998. However, in the context of the Scottish devolution settlement, it is much less restrictive, as the Scottish Parliament has competence over considerably greater fields, including, of course, justice matters, and the Scottish system of civil and criminal law. Therefore, what might appear to be wider latitude for the Assembly would in practice still amount to narrower competence than that of the Scottish Parliament.

Text of the paragraph as amended

The law on reserved matters

1 (1) A provision of an Act of the Assembly cannot make modifications of, or confer power by subordinate legislation to make modifications of, the law on reserved matters.

(2) “The law on reserved matters” means—

(a) any enactment the subject-matter of which is a reserved matter and which is comprised in an Act of Parliament or subordinate legislation under an Act of Parliament, and

(b) any rule of law which is not contained in an enactment and

the subject-matter of which is a reserved matter,
and in this sub-paragraph “Act of Parliament” does not include
this Act.

2 ~~(1)~~ Paragraph 1 does not apply to a modification that ~~(a)~~ is ancillary to a provision made (whether by the Act in question or another enactment) which does not relate to reserved matters. ~~and~~
~~(b) has no greater effect on reserved matters than is necessary to give effect to the purpose of that provision.~~

~~(2) In determining what is necessary for the purposes of this paragraph, any power to make laws other than the power of the Assembly is disregarded.~~

Text of amendment and Explanatory notes

Schedule 2, page 77, line 21, leave out from “matters” to end of line 26.

Explanatory notes

The amendment removes the necessity test in relation to the law on reserved matters.

Schedule 2, paragraph 4 – Criminal law

Purpose and effect of proposed amendment

13. This amendment removes the criminal law restriction in paragraph 4 of Schedule 7B and replaces it with a restriction which provides that the Assembly cannot modify criminal law unless it is for a purpose other than a reserved purpose. It reflects the Assembly’s current competence (i.e. the criminal law is a silent subject, and the Assembly can modify the criminal law if it relates to a devolved subject, or if the modification is ancillary).

14. The Assembly, therefore, could not modify the criminal law if it was for a reserved purpose, thus protecting the criminal law around the 200+ reservations in the Wales Bill. The amendment also makes it clear that the Assembly could not modify the criminal law for its own sake – there must be a devolved purpose behind the modification of the criminal law.

15. The amendment aligns the criminal law restriction with the private law restriction (see paragraph 3 of Schedule 7B). This would provide consistency and clarity.

16. It should be noted that the criminal law includes civil penalties, such as fixed penalty notices, which, in effect, will protect civil penalties in relation to the 200+ reservations.

Text of the paragraph as amended

Criminal law and civil penalties

4 (1) A provision of an Act of the Assembly cannot make modifications of, or confer power by subordinate legislation to make modifications of, the criminal law.

(See also paragraph 6 of Schedule 7A (single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales).)

(2) Sub-paragraph (1) does not apply to a modification that has a purpose (other than modification of the criminal law) which does not relate to a reserved matter.

(3) This paragraph applies to civil penalties as it applies to offences; and references in this paragraph to the criminal law are to be read accordingly).

Text of amendment and Explanatory notes

Schedule 2, page 78, line 2 leave out paragraph 4 and insert –

“4 (1) A provision of an Act of the Assembly cannot make modifications of, or confer power by subordinate legislation to make modifications of, the criminal law.

(See also paragraph 6 of Schedule 7A (single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales).)

(2) Sub-paragraph (1) does not apply to a modification that has a purpose (other than modification of the criminal law) which does not relate to a reserved matter.

(3) This paragraph applies to civil penalties as it applies to offences; and references in this paragraph to the criminal law are to be read accordingly.”

Explanatory notes

The amendment inserts a restriction so that the Assembly cannot modify criminal law unless it is for a purpose other than a reserved purpose. This would bring it into line with the private law restriction.

List of proposed amendments

Clause 3 – Legislative competence

Amendment 1

Clause 3, page 2, line 33 leave out “subsection (2)(b) does” and insert “subsections (2)(b) and (2)(c) do”

Explanatory notes

The amendment restores the Assembly’s competence by enabling it to legislate in an ancillary way in relation to reserved matters.

Amendment 2

Clause 3, page 2, line 34 leave out from “provision” to end of line 6 on page 3 and insert “which is within the Assembly’s legislative competence (or would be if it were included in an Act of the Assembly).”

Explanatory notes

The amendment restores the Assembly’s competence by enabling it to legislate in an ancillary way in relation to reserved matters.

Clause 51 – Consequential provision

Amendment 1

Clause 51, page 39, line 4, leave out “primary legislation” and insert “an Act of Parliament”.

Explanatory notes

The amendment introduces separate provisions for the use of the power in clause 51 in relation to an Act of Parliament.

Amendment 2

Clause 51, page 39, line 6, at end insert –

“(6A) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or repealing any provision of a Measure or Act of the National Assembly for Wales may not be made unless a draft of the instrument has been laid before and approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and the Assembly.”

Explanatory notes

The amendment provides that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or repeal an Assembly Act or Assembly Measure, then the regulations must be approved by the Assembly and each House of Parliament.

Amendment 3

Clause 51, page 39, line 7, at beginning insert “Subject to subsection (7A),”

Explanatory notes

The amendment is linked to the provision that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or revoke subordinate legislation made by the Welsh Ministers or the Assembly, the regulations would be subject to annulment by the Assembly and each House of Parliament.

Amendment 4

Clause 51, page 39, line 10, at end insert –

“(7A) A statutory instrument containing regulations under subsection (2) that includes provision amending or revoking subordinate legislation made by—

(a) the Welsh Ministers, or

(b) the National Assembly for Wales as constituted by the Government of Wales Act 1998,

if made without a draft having been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and the Assembly, is subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of either House of Parliament or the Assembly.”

Explanatory notes

The amendment provides that where the Secretary of State uses the power in clause 51 to make regulations that amend or revoke subordinate legislation made by the Welsh Ministers or the Assembly, the regulations would be subject to annulment by the Assembly and each House of Parliament.

Amendment 5

Clause 51, page 39, line 11, leave out subsection (8).

Explanatory notes

The amendment removes the definition of “primary legislation”.

Schedule 1, paragraph 1, reservation 6 – Single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales

Schedule 1, page 42, line 20, leave out “prosecutors” and insert “the Crown Prosecution Service”

Explanatory notes

The amendment clarifies the reservation so that “the Crown Prosecution Service” is reserved, rather than “prosecutors” more generally, as this could prohibit Assembly legislation enabling devolved authorities to prosecute, such as local authorities.

Schedule 2, paragraphs 1 and 2 – The law on reserved matters

Schedule 2, page 77, line 21, leave out from “matters” to end of line 26.

Explanatory notes

The amendment removes the necessity test in relation to the law on reserved matters.

Schedule 2, paragraph 4 – Criminal law

Schedule 2, page 78, line 2 leave out paragraph 4 and insert –

“4 (1) A provision of an Act of the Assembly cannot make modifications of, or confer power by subordinate legislation to make modifications of, the criminal law.

(See also paragraph 6 of Schedule 7A (single legal jurisdiction of England and Wales).)

(2) Sub-paragraph (1) does not apply to a modification that has a purpose (other than modification of the criminal law) which does not relate to a reserved matter.

(3) This paragraph applies to civil penalties as it applies to offences; and references in this paragraph to the criminal law are to be read accordingly.”

Explanatory notes

The amendment inserts a restriction so that the Assembly cannot modify criminal law unless it is for a purpose other than a reserved purpose. This would bring it into line with the private law restriction.